MINUTES
of the

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON
MAY 5, 2011

THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI, STATE OF HAWAII, CONVENED A PUBLIC
HEARING ON THURSDAY, MAY 5, 2011 AT 6:06 P.M., IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER,
KALANA 0 MAUI BUILDING, WAILUKU, HAWAII, WITH CHAIR DENNIS A. MATEO
PRESIDING, FOR THE PURPOSE OF RECEIVING TESTIMONY ON THE PROPOSED
REAL PROPERTY TAX RATES FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
JULY 1, 2011 TO JUNE 30, 2012.

CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui, public hearing of May 5, 2011 will come to
order.
Mr. Clerk, may we have the roll call please.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS GLADYS C. BAISA, ROBERT CARROLL,
ELEANORA COCHRAN, DONALD G. COUCH JR.,
MICHAEL B. WHITE, VICE-CHAIR JOSEPH PONTANILLA,
AND CHAIR DENNIS A. MATEO.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBERS G. RIKI HOKAMA AND MICHAEL P.
VICTORINO.
There were approximately 15 members of the public in attendance.
COUNTY CLERK JEFFREY T. KUWADA: Mr. Chairman, there are seven Members present
and two excused.
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, notice of the public hearing on the Real Property Tax
Rates for the County of Maui for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012 was
published in the April 21, 2011 and April 28, 2011 editions of the Maui News.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. The Chair would like to thank everyone who have chose to
join us this evening for the public hearing held by the Council on the Fiscal Year 2012
Real Property Tax Rates regarding the various classifications and range of the rates
that are being considered for the Fiscal Year 2012.
Members, before we begin with public testimony, the Chair would like to announce
that tonight's public hearing is the first of a two part process regarding the public
ability to provide testimony on the Real Property Tax Rates for the County of Maui for
Fiscal Year 2012.
This evening we will be receiving testimony from the public. The Chair will be
recessing this meeting upon completion of public testimony and will be announcing at
a later date, time this evening the exact date, time and location of the recessed or
reconvened meeting.
Mr. Clerk, will you advise us how many individuals signed up to provide public
testimony.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, presently we have five individuals who wish to offer
testimony.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
For those wishing to provide testimony to the Council this evening on the Real
Property Tax Rates and categories, you will be provided three minutes to provide
your comments to the Council. At the start of your comments, the green light on the
podium will be lit. At the two minute thirty second mark, the yellow light will be lit
letting you know you have thirty seconds to conclude. And at the three minute mark
the red light will be lit letting you know you will need to conclude. If you need, an
additional minute may be provided, for you to conclude your testimony.
And for those of us with cell phones or other noise making devices, please check
them to see that they are either turned off or set on the silent mode to avoid
disruptions. Decorum in this chamber will be maintained.
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Mr. Clerk, call up our first testifier.
COUNTY CLERK: The first person to offer testimony is Larry Alexander. Mr. Alexander will
be followed by Bryan Sarasin.

TESTIMONY
MR. LARRY ALEXANDER:
Good evening, Mr. Chair, Members. My name is Larry Alexander. I'm here to testify
on some of the things I've been reading in the paper about this real practice, real
property taxes hikes.
From my understand, you people are looking at raising from the minimum from 150 to
$300 per tax key. I'm a small rancher. I can't afford to own my own land so I lease
land from the State, from HC&S, from EMI. Lot of the property taxes that we do, we
pay the property tax and the lands I lease consists of a lot of tax keys.
The 200 acres that I lease has thirteen tax keys, okay. When you went from 60 to
$150 it went from 780 to $1,950 a year on my property taxes for my leases. Now if
you proposing $300, you looking at $3,900 a year I going be paying on property
taxes. That will put me out of business. I will not be able to afford that. That's my
main concern what's going on right now. You will put me out of business if you go
from $150 to $300 on a minimum on pasture land tax, real property tax. That's all I
have.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Alexander. Members, is there a need to have any part of
the testimony rephrased?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you for coming to testify this evening.
You say you're leasing this from the State?
MR. ALEXANDER: I get, I also have from the State, I have from EMI, and HC&S.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, so they're all separate owners?
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MR. ALEXANDER: All separate ones. But you see, you pay a lease on the property. You
have to have insurance on the property and you have to pay, you're liable for the
property tax also.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are these contiguous acres? I mean are all the-MR. ALEXANDER: Yes. What they do is, like I have one 50 acre parcel, but there's four
tax keys there. I have another 50 acre, 50 acre parcel, that's another four tax keys
there. And I have thirteen of them.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And have you talked with the landowners, State or
EMI, who, whomever where-MR. ALEXANDER: Its part of your lease, you're responsible for the property tax.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What I'm asking is, about them consolidating. It's a, it's
basically a paper process to consolidate those into one tax key.
MR. ALEXANDER: Yeah, but when you pay your property tax they don't consolidate each
one. You pay each one individually.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you for coming, Larry.
I, I think you point out a real challenge that we have in, in dealing with things like the
minimum tax because, you know, we sit here envisioning that if we increase the
minimum tax we're dealing with one household or a person who owns one piece.
But you're presenting us with a, a whole different animal to deal with and I haven't
been here long enough to figure out how the, how to increase the minimum tax which
I think we'd probably need to do. But in your case we certainly would make a mistake
so we'll look for a way to deal with it.
MR. ALEXANDER: I look at, you have a lot of two acre parcels that are like, we call it
gentlemen estates, they raise trees, they have a house on it. They live there. The
lands that I lease, I raise cattle on it. That's all it's good for, to raise cattle.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, I, the other Members know that I've, I have some real
challenges with gentlemen estates. I, I live on a place that people would call it,
gentlemen estate, because I don't make my money off of, I have, I have animals, I
have pasture, but my land value is not reflective of its value at all.
MR. ALEXANDER: But you see, at least you have animals and you utilizing the land for
raise something. You don't have four fruit trees and consider that ag.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. Anyway, we'll, we'll take a look at it. You've, you
present us with a, a good challenge. So thank you for coming tonight.
MR. ALEXANDER: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. White. Members, further, further questions?
Mr. Alexander, how many separate TMK's did you say?
MR. ALEXANDER: Thirteen.
CHAIR MATEO: Thirteen? Thank you very much. Thank you very much, Mr. Alexander.
Mr. Clerk.
MR. ALEXANDER: Thank you, Chairman.
COUNTY CLERK: Bryan Sarasin. Mr. Sarasin will be followed by Heath Payne.
MR. BRYAN SARASIN:
Good evening, Chair, Councilmembers. I'm here this evening to testify on the
agricultural and the residential. And, again, like the previous testifier, if you're going
to increase from 150 to 300, would be an unfair burden on a lot of people, a lot of
small businesses.
The other thing I'm really concerned with is haven't really heard too much but I have
heard some rumors that, you know, homeowners exemption has kind of been thrown
around a little bit. Raising the property taxes on residential has been thrown around
as well as agricultural. I'm a property owner. I own ag land. I have just under one
acre and I utilize the whole thing for agriculture.
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I do have a homeowners exemption and it would be a hardship on me, especially in
these economic times to go ahead and either take away the homeowners exemption
or to actually raise the property taxes on my property cause I live on the property.
And it's, with, with this tough economic times, I understand you guys have some
really hard choices to make. But, you know, I really like to ask you not to put it on the
people that are having a hard time such as the homeowner. Economy is in the pits.
Everybody's trying to survive and I just would ask that you keep the residential and
the agricultural.
I really have no other interests in the other properties. I'm sure they would, they
would like to have it lowered as well. But I, I'm here to testify on the agricultural and
the residential.
And, you know again, leave the homeowners exemption alone and also don't go to
the minimum, minimum tax on the, on, on the property because like the previous
testifier said, it would actually put him out of business. And I know that, I know a lot
of people that do lease land and they, they're in the same situation and, as him and I
just wouldn't want to see them go out of business. They've been around doing this
for years, and years, and years, and I thank you for your time. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, is there a need to have any part of the
testimony rephrased?
Go ahead, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Sarasin for being here. You said
you know a lot of people that, that lease land and, and are all those pieces of land
multiple TMK's?
MR. SARASIN: Majority of em are. It's very rare to have a big piece of property. The only
exception to the rule might be with, you know, maybe Maui Land and Pine, if they had
a, a big tax map key and they leased just one tax map key but that would be a rarity.
The people that I've talked to have, just like the previous testifier, they have a whole
bunch of tax map keys and I could see if you were to draft a bill to state that a
homeowner would have, a homeowner that lives on the property would have a $150
minimum tax. I could see that.
When you come to agriculture and you come into these unique situations, I think it's
very unfair to lump the agricultural and, and the ranchers and, you know, whether it's
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landscaping or, or fruit trees or whatever it is that they're actually doing ag, for them
to be penalized in that, in that manner.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Members, further questions? Thank you very
much.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Calling Heath Payne.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, it's okay. I'll ask-CHAIR MATEO: I'm sorry Mr. White, you wanted to ask a question?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If, If you don't mind.
CHAIR MATEO: Oh, I'm sorry. Yeah, not at all. Excuse me, I didn't see you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Go right ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: The, the challenge that we have is that, and what I'm, I
presented my version of the budget, it was with no tax increases. Having gone
through all the financials and seeing how many structural increases there are in the,
in County operations, I'm, I'm reluctantly having to change my view of things.
But in also, in looking at the other counties, Maui has the most generous
homeowners exemption. We tax only about fifty percent, about fifty-one percent of
the home's value. If you look at the other counties, Oahu, based on a thousand, the
gross valuation, Oahu generates $2.82 per thousand. The Big Island generates
$3.20 and Kauai generates $3.06 per thousand. With this year's budget, the Maui
homeowners contribution overall will drop to $1.14 from $1.27.
So we're significantly lower and I, you know, I recognize that it's a tough time to
increase taxes. You know, being part of a hotel, I'm used to tax increases and paying
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taxes and we're more than willing to do our fair share. But I would ask what would
your reaction be? Because we, the values have dropped so significantly, the
homeowners this year are actually, with the rates staying the same, it would be
paying roughly four million dollars less in taxes than they paid last year. And that's, I
think part of the reason why there was an interest to raising the minimum tax.
If we're not, if we don't touch the minimum tax and instead look at a flat tax across all
categories, it would require about $0.40 per thousand. Not, no $0.40, yeah $0.40 per
thousand. So the homeowners rate would go up to $2.90. Would that be more
acceptable than an increase in the minimum rate?
MR. SARASIN: You know. That's kind of a hard question. My, my first inclination is no.
And let me give you a little bit of reasoning why. When I see gentlemen estates, and
I see all, I would say, on the gentlemen estates, I would venture to say ninety-five
percent are not doing ag on and they're getting that reduction. If the County had an
in, had the enforcement and were to enforce the regulations that if they're not doing
their ag like they're supposed to, they would get taxed appropriately. I can tell you
right now, that four million dollars or whatever, the shortfall would be, would be
probably multiplied by probably at least five to ten times just because of the value of
the property that, that should be rightly charged. And that's my opinion. I mean if
they, if they are doing ag and they and they're doing it according to everything, then
fine they deserve that rate.
But I'm all over this island and I can tell you I, I can tell you of a property up in Kula
that has maybe two dozen fruit trees over about 40 acres. They use 75,000 gallons
of water a day to irrigate the grass. Now when I see situations like this, and they're
getting the agricultural rate or the, or the reduced rate, it upsets me because, for me,
that's not fair. They should be charged what's appropriate.
Just like the, the previous testifier said, they raise maybe four or five fruit trees or
maybe one, one goat or, or a cow or a couple horses or whatever, you know. So I, I,
for personally for me, I think if, if the Council was to go and going after the
enforcement end and make the, make the taxes retroactive, then I think the revenue
that would be generated would be astronomical. And in my, in my mind and I might
not speak for everybody but in my mind that would be fair cause that would be right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, you don't get any argument out of me on the ag
valuations and I, I've explained here that I have three benefits. I have a homeowners
exemption, I have an ag valuation and I have the homeowners rate. And I don't think
it's fair and I'm ready to tackle it.
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But that's, you know, that's something we can't address under existing law. This
Council has to change the law because now the, the tax department by law has to,
has to value those parcels differently. And they have to do it individually rather than
going across the-MR. SARASIN: Across the board.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --subdivision like they do in, in other areas.
But I, I, I really appreciate your perspective on that. I think we're going to have to do
something this year. But you can, you can, I believe you can count on this Council to
try to bring some fairness to the ag sector. And, and I want to thank you for your-MR. SARASIN: Okay, thank you. I just want to make one last comment. On my property,
went for the homeowners exemption; since I live on it. I did not go for the ag
exemption, just the homeowners exemption cause I, it was to a point where it was fair
and equitable for me and I didn't want to get greedy and try to, you know, go after the
system to try to get as much as I can. I try to do what, what I feel is fair. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, further questions? Thank you very much, Mr. Sarasin.
Mr. Clerk, proceed.
COUNTY CLERK: Heath Payne. Mr. Payne will be followed by Thomas Croly.
MR. HEATH PAYNE:
Aloha Chair Mateo, Members of the Council.
CHAIR MATEO: Good evening.
MR. PAYNE: My name is Heath Payne, an employee of Wyndham Worldwide and the
Assistant Resort Manager at WorldMark Kihei Resort. You already have my written
testimony so I just want to summarize some key points.
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Wyndham opposes any increase in real property tax on time share units. At $14.00
per $1,000 of assessed value, time shares already have the highest tax rate for any
real property classification.
Time share owners already bring substantial tax dollars to Maui. If taxes on time
share owners continue to rise, time share owners committed to visiting Maui may
ultimately decide to vacation elsewhere. Rather than contribute to visitor decline,
efforts should be made to continue to promote tourism to attract visitors; including
time share owners to Maui.
Time shares also contribute a significant number of good paying jobs for Maui
residents. I'm a longtime local resident of Maui and this job has allowed me to stay
and raise my family here. For these reasons, I respectfully oppose increasing the
real property tax rate on time shares. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you very much, Mr. Payne.
MR. PAYNE: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Thomas Croly. Mr. Croly will be followed by Jason Gamel.

MR. THOMAS CROLY:
Aloha, Members. I'm Thomas Croly and I'm usually here speaking on behalf of the
Maui Vacation Rental Association, but I've already spoken on this issue for the Maui
Vacation Rental Association and you folks have my testimony on that and hopefully
you understand the, understood the rationale for me testifying that the rate proposed
by the Mayor and also by the Chair of this Committee or by the Budget Committee,
we agree with and, and we support that, that rate.
Today, speaking on my own behalf, I'd like to say how impressed I am with the efforts
of this Council to look after this, this budget and the, the people's money, if you will. I
really truly feel we have a great team here; just like the Philadelphia Phillies had a
good team last year and they made a few trades and they and they got a few more
guys and now they're just unbeatable. I think we have that kind of team here, here
today. And, and, and I hope it pumps you up a little bit and gets you through the,
what, what's, what's left here, but the discussions that you guys have been having
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are really to the issue and I really appreciate them. You're my favorite daytime TV
stars on Akaku.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You poor thing.
MR. CROLY: One of the discussions that I've heard you have, and I fully agree with, is
some of the changes that need to take place in our tax code. I fully agree with the
ideas put forward by Councilmember White about taking a better look at how we tax
ag lands and how we apply that to properties that people make their homes on as
opposed to properties that are being used for ranches. We need to find a better
balance there. It's not working and there are people who aren't here today because
they're making out like bandits. And, and, and we have to address that.
I agree with Scott Teruya from the tax office when he told you guys, "give him the
tools that he needs in order to go after people who are abusing the homeowner
exemption and the, and the homeowner rate". I think we should have to prove that
we live, live here. You know there, there should be something we have to come
forward to do so, so give Scott those tools; whether it's the personnel or whether it's a
change in code, please, please do that.
I also agree with many from the visitor industry who have expressed frustration that
they've seen their property taxes double and triple over the past few years, while
they've seen homeowner rates remain level. Not even, not, not rates, but
homeowner taxes, the tax, the actual bill that somebody pays remain level or go
down over the past ten years. So we have this huge disparity between the, the
properties in the visitor industry and, and the properties that get, get homeowners.
I do agree with the intent of increasing the minimum tax to $300 but I really
appreciate Larry coming here and pointing out that there's an impact to the ag lands
that you'll have to figure out how deal with. And I, I, I think that you'll figure out a way
to do that. All this discussion has been good discussion, but it's going to go nowhere
unless we actually take some action to reform the tax code. And I'd like to see us do
that by forming a, a committee that includes the public, that addresses the, these
items and, and gives the Council some input on how to best address some of these
inequities in, in the tax code.
CHAIR MATEO: One minute.
MR. CROLY: With, with such reform, I think that this Council would have an easier time in
next year's budget; finding the money that they need. I'm, and keep in mind next
year the values are going to drop by another fifteen percent. I mean with, that's,
that's fact so, so we've, we've got to be prepared for that. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased?
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I just have to ask the question. You said that you agreed with
the rate on, I guess it was your, your property and the commercial-MR. CROLY: Commercialized residential.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --residential. Would you be comfortable with an across the
board rate increase of $0.40, if it applied to all categories?
MR. CROLY: If it applied to all categories, I would be comfortable with it. I wouldn't feel, I,
you know, I'd want you guys to do whatever job you can to, to keep that from
happening. But one of the things that I didn't say in my testimony and I think should,
needs to be said and that is that, that $0.40 across the board increase probably will
not increase the net tax bill that most taxpayers end up paying. People are
concerned about the rate going up and I understand that concern. But everyone's
value has dropped and as the values have dropped, unless you guys raise the rates
back up, everyone's going to pay lower taxes. Now, maybe they feel like that's, that's
fair because we're, we're in a tough economy, but I understand the, the position it
puts you in.
And I just want to mention that in, where I previously lived, they had a tax code that
automatically adjusted the millage rates based on the overall values going up or
down so that it was always flat; everyone's tax bill was always flat. And the County
Council had to pass a, an ordinance in order to raise those millage rates, even
though the millage rates were changing year by year.
You didn't have people coming forward and saying, "oh the rates going up, the rates
going down", cause nobody ever knew what they even were. All they knew was the
bill that they got stayed stable unless an ordinance was passed to actually raise the
taxes. And that's something that, again in the bigger picture of tax reform, I'd like to
see us look, look at.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, what you mention about the, the actual payments going
down is correct, even with a forty percent, or $0.40 increase, the homeowners as
example would still be paying 8.5% less than they did last year and two categories
would go up, but everyone else would go down.
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MR. CROLY: Yup.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. White. Thank you, Mr. Croly.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Jason Gamel. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Gamel is the last individual to submit a
request to offer testimony.

MR. JASON GAMEL:
Chair Mateo, Members of the Council, aloha and good evening.
CHAIR MATEO: Good evening.
MR. GAMEL: My name is Jason Gamel. I'm with the American Resort Development
Association, which is the trade association that represents the time share industry
nationwide. Tonight, I'm here in capacity as representing the ARDA-Hawaii Chapter
of ARDA. And as well as I'm representing the ARDA Resort Owners' Coalition, which
represents over one million time share owners worldwide; tens of thousands of which
have interests here in Maui.
First I'd like to acknowledge that the original proposal of $19.60 and I would say
thank you so far in the reduction to, I believe is a proposal of $15.00 for the time
share rate. But I still believe that on behalf of both ARDA-Hawaii, ARDA and ARDAROC, that there should be no increase whatsoever in the time share rate and as a
matter of fact, we believe that the rate should be that of hotel/resort.
We believe this because time share already pays its fair shares of taxes and we
believe that there have been significant data that has been provided to the Council
during meetings here and also to the community meetings where you have shown the
exact tax burden that the time share units pay already compared to all other
classifications of property taxpayers.
You've also heard testimony from developers, management companies, associations,
vendors to the times hare industry, business owners and employees alike who've all
testified as to what the time share industry does for them or what it does for Maui and
exactly the benefits that they receive and how it provides stable employment for so
many people on the island.
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For those reasons, when we look back at where the property tax rate is today, then
we look back to 2005 when the tax rate was first moved to $14.00 per thousand, per
thousand, we look and say we were not able to find any good rationale as to why that
rate was there or why the rates should be raised even today.
I see no rationale because the only rate and the rationale we can see provided would
either be philosophical approach to taxation or we look at what maybe a, a reason
why, for land use control. And for, to discourage or encourage certain growth on the
island which we don't believe are property, or proper ways that we should use
property tax rates, especially for existing time share owners as many of those policies
won't affect, as they may affect future development, they also affect property owners
here on the island today.
Instead, what we believe should be done is, is like prior testifiers. We think that
there's a problem with the system and the way that there's assessments for time
shares. And the problem that isn't one necessarily created by the Council but it's
created by confusion as to how to exactly to assess a time share unit.
And we believe that we at ARDA offers its support and ARDA-ROC offers its support
and its cooperation to come to work together with the Council to come to a better
method of assessment. One that we believe that recognizes the differences of time
share. One that recognizes the non-realty portions that go into the time share
purchase price.
And one that will help decrease the number of appeals because we realize this is an
issue for the County for several reasons: the cost of appeals and also timing in the
funds that is, that are tied up during this appeal, appeal process.
So for this reasons, we ask that the rate not be increased, that it be returned to the
hotel/resort rate and that while we do this, we work together to come up with a
method of assessment that's fair and equitable to both the County and time share
resorts on the island. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for Mr. Gamel?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And thank you Mr. Camel for coming.
MR. GAMEL: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I appreciate your offer to work with us on, on ways to work
out what we can do. You mentioned something about a, a 2005 philosophical?
What, what, what were you referring to there?
MR. GAMEL: I was referring to actually the minutes from the April meeting, in 2005.
Looking at any of the record, a public record in trying to come up with the rationale
that was used, it was the rationale that was cited exactly during that time that this was
a philosophical approach to taxation and that there was no actual data, except for
data that was related to TAT, that was paid by transient hotel units. The only thing
that we could find in the record was that this was a philosophical reason why I believe
that this increase should happen.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, and I see you quoted that in your written testimony.
MR. GAMEL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I, I don't mind working with groups of people, Mr. Chair. I do
mind working with people that only give us part facts. From that same meeting, I will
quote you.
MR. GAMEL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Gamel.
From Mr. Young, the same person you quoted, it says: "in doing that analysis and
deriving the $21.00 rate based on that analysis, the Mayor has considered that a
$16.00 rate is more appropriate. I do not have an analysis for why we would justify or
rationalize the $16.00, only that we did the analysis for the time share, for the TAT, it
proved out $21.00, and we're offering $16.00.
So you got a $5.00 reduction in what they did the analysis in 2005. So if you're going
to give us quotes and what not, give us the whole story and we'd be happy to work
with you, but let's not be partial.
MR. GAMEL: Chair, Councilmember Couch, may I respond?
CHAIR MATEO: Real, real quickly please.
MR. GAMEL: Okay. I, I, I certainly mean no disrespect. I also didn't include other sections
in the, the testimony which talked exactly why they came to 21 percent. But a $21.00
increase was certainly as a TAT replacement, it seemed like. I was also looking at
the point where the $16.00 figure, and you're right, it did come down from 21 to 16
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but when asked about the $16.00 figure it was exactly where the statement was
made that that $16.00 figure was more of a philosophical approach and no clear cut
or focus analysis done on that figure, that was a question and I think Mr. Young
concur, concurred that in philosophical I would say is a good description of how we
arrived at the $16.00 rate.
So, while it was appreciated that they moved for the $21.00 to 16, what I, my point
being, I don't think that there was a place for the $21.00 or the $16.00 rate other than
either a TAT related analysis which is apples to oranges when looking at what one
pays in taxes for our transient accommodation versus what property owners pay.
And the second being that of the $16.00 rate which is again philosophical and not
necessarily backed up with data that showed you there, more use of services or
something else. And that's, that was my point.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's correct. The data said $21.00.
MR. GAMEL: I, I again, not to be argumentative but-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Mr. Camel, thank you. Members, further questions for Mr. Camel?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. So are you from D.C.?
MR. CAMEL: Actually, Orlando's my home.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. You know it's been a few weeks and we've gotten,
you know, a lot of input from the time share industry and it's not the first time I heard
that the assessment of time share properties seemed unfair and, you know, not so
accurate and this and that. I was hoping by now somebody would've come up. I
know you're saying you're willing to work with and, and work through this but I'd like
to hear and see exactly what you mean by this.
MR. GAMEL: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, I was hoping by now we'd have some sort of, you
know, concrete, positive input into how to rectify this.
MR. CAMEL: Sure, I will have, I, I've got some information that I can provide to you. It's in
sort of a, a rough draft form, we've done some research in looking at different

Public Hearing of the Council of the County of Maui
May 5, 2011
Page 17

jurisdiction. I'm more than happy to discuss that with you I, if now is an appropriate
time?
CHAIR MATEO: No.
MR. GAMEL: No?
CHAIR MATEO: No.
MR. CAMEL: Okay.
CHAIR MATEO: Keep in mind-MR. CAMEL: Well, then I'd be more than happy-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Game!, you can provide the information to Ms. Cochran and she can
look through it.
MR. CAMEL: I'll follow up with you on that information.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
MR. CAMEL: Yes.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Chair, I'd like to get some of that-CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --information as well.
CHAIR MATEO: Sure thing. Yeah.
MR. CAMEL: I'll provide-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Camel, if you can also make it avail, you might as well make it
available to all of us.
MR. CAMEL: That's, that sounds fantastic.
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CHAIR MATEO: So all, so we can, get a better understanding of, of-MR. CAMEL: Okay.
CHAIR MATEO: --your thoughts on the process here. So Members, further questions for
Mr. Camel?
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, I'd just like to thank you for coming this evening. It's
always good to have people show up. This is how we have good discussion. And I
appreciate your offer for assistance. You, you may or may not realize that many of
the Members are new Members to the Council and so they haven't had the benefit of
a lot of the discussion that's gone on over the years. And I know there's been a lot
cause I've been here through many of the battles over the time share issue. But it's
always good because we have new Members to give us that again and try again. So,
I think it will be very important for you to get that. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Members, further questions? Mr. Gamel, thank
you very much.
MR. CAMEL: Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, Mr. Camel was the last individual who had signed
up to provide testimony to the Council this evening. The Chair will offer the
opportunity to anyone in the gallery wanting to provide testimony to the Council.
Please advance to the podium, we will be, we will gladly accept your testimony.
Members, no one advance. With no objections, we will close public testimony for the
evening. Any objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
COUNCIL CHAIR: Thank you. Members, in the folders placed on your desk we have
copies of the written testimony that had been provided. Also with no objections, we
will receive them into the record. Any objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
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THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, WRITTEN TESTIMONY RECEIVED
FROM THE FOLLOWING WERE MADE A PART OF THE RECORD OF
THIS MEETING:
1.
2.

Mr. Heath Payne, WorldMark Kihei Resort; and
Mr. Jason Gamel, American Resort Development Association.

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, so ordered. At this time Members, the Chair would like to
again announce this meeting, this public hearing will stand in recess. We will
schedule the next meeting or hearing on the Real Property Tax hearing on Monday,
May 23, 2011 at 11:00 a.m., right here in the chamber. Once again, tonight's
meeting will be recessed to May 23, 2011, 11:00 a.m., right here in the chamber.
Mr. Clerk, further business?
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there's no further business to come before the, the body.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, just a, and, and audience, following the, this public
hearing at 8:00, it's the continuation of the Budget meeting chaired by Mr. Pontanilla.
You're all welcome to stay and join us, you know, if you have absolutely nothing to do
for the rest of the evening, we'd be happy to, to have you join us.
Council of the County of Maui, public hearing regarding the Real Property Tax Rates
for the County of Maui for Fiscal Year 2012 stands in recess.
THE COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING OF MAY 5, 2011 WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR
AT 6:44 P.M., AND WAS RECONVENED ON MAY 23, 2011, AT 11:07 A.M.
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui, notice of public hearing and notice of intent
to fix real property tax rates will, for May 23, 2011 will reconvene.
Mr. Clerk, may we have the roll call please.
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ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS GLADYS C. BAISA, ROBERT CARROLL,
ELEANORA COCHRAN, DONALD G. COUCH JR.,
G. RIKI HOKAMA, MICHAEL P. VICTORINO, MICHAEL B.
WHITE, VICE-CHAIR JOSEPH PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR
DENNIS A. MATEO.
EXCUSED: NONE.
There were approximately 20 members of the public in attendance.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, all nine Members of the Council are present.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, notice of this reconvened public hearing was published in
the, in the May 12, 2011 and May 15, 2011 editions of the Maui News.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Clerk.
Members, pursuant to Section 3.48.565.B of the, of the Maui County Code, public
hearing was held by the Council on Thursday, May 5, 2011 here in the Chambers;
therefore, this is the reconvened meeting from that first meeting of May 5.
Mr. Clerk, do we have anyone signed up to provide testimony this morning?
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, presently we have requests from twelve individuals
wishing to offer testimony.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Prior to calling up the individuals, the Clerk would, the Chair
would like to state those providing testimony this morning, you will be allowed to
speak for three minutes.
At the start of your comments, the green light on the podium will be lit. At the two
minute, at the two minute and thirty second limit, the yellow light will be lit. And at the
three minute mark the red light will be lit letting you know you will need to conclude.
If additional time is needed, an additional minute may be provided to each of the
testifiers.

Public Hearing of the Council of the County of Maui
May 5, 2011
Page 21

For those of us with cell phones or other noise making devices, this would be a good
time to set them, to turn them off or set them on the silent mode.
Mr. Clerk, call up the first testifier please.
COUNTY CLERK: Calling Mitch Skaggerberg. Mr. Skaggerberg will be followed by Paul
Laub.

TESTIMONY
MR. MITCH SKAGGERBERG:
Aloha and mahalo, Councilmembers. It's good to be here with you again. This time
I've typed things.
My name is Mitch Skaggerberg and I am Chaplain for the Maui County Veterans
Council. Also a lifetime member of the Disabled American Veterans Chapter 2 here
in Maui.
I am here on behalf of hundreds of Maui's totally disabled veterans. We are asking
you to oppose any increase in our minimum property tax rate.
We believe the original intent of this tax was to be a total property tax exemption, with
minimal and admin. fees charged to us covering our cost of maintaining our files.
And in fact, when we registered, it was called an admin fee up until several years
ago. Your predecessors in Maui County wanted to truly honor our duty to Country,
our combat injuries, and our sacrifices. This truly made us feel appreciated and
welcomed back home here on Maui.
Increasing our taxes to $300 would effectively make this more like a standard
property tax rate. For example, many of us with assessed property values of 400,000
or below would end up paying up to 66 percent of the regular homeowners tax rate.
And, and, and in other words . . . This would affect the, effectively change our status
to one of the regular property taxpayer with a slight discount of about 33 percent.
Next Monday, some of you will be attending a Memorial Day services; some of you
who are veterans and we've shared bread together. You're going, you will express
your heartfelt gratitude and appreciation for those who fully gave their lives, and for
those severely injured in battle. And we always look forward to having you up at the,
you are part of our ohana.
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We know how appreciative you are of our service to our Country and to Maui. We
know of those who are our fellow veterans; however, today we are asking you to
show your deepest respect and appreciation in a very tangible way to ease the
financial hardship for most of our disabled veterans. We have 65 percent of our
veterans are over sixty-four years old and many of them are in the 80 percentile of
income, below the median income, me included; and on fixed incomes.
Council Joe Pontanilla even spoke out recently, he did not want to raise taxes for our
most vulnerable senior citizens and most disabled citizens. Joe, you really, you
captured our hearts, the way you and the budget have progressed here. We are
deeply touched by your wisdom and compassion.
CHAIR MATEO: One minute to conclude.
MR. SKAGGERBERG: We are asking you to restore our status to only paying a minimal
administrative fee and to restore our true property tax exempt status, perhaps even
making us a separate category within the broad range of things. We are
recommending that you lower the fee to the $60.00 annual that we had in place in
2008 when you, when you more than doubled it. We heard a lot of groans from the,
from my fellow veterans, now we're hearing just like wow.
Again, mahalo for your continued support and as Chaplain, "May our Good Shepherd
continue to bless you and renew you with all the compassionate and caring work you
do for all of us in Maui County. We truly appreciate you." Aloha.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased?
Mr. Pontanilla
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chaplain for being here. You know I
truly meant what I said in regards to looking after, you know, the needy, the disabled.
But when I look back, you know, formulating the budget, especially this year, you
know, this County has a lot of needs that we need to fulfill. And basically, you know,
I, I, I tried to do the best I could.
I, I don't know if the veterans are aware of our circuit breaker process. And if not,
then I would instruct the Administration to somehow get, you know, with you an, and
your veterans in trying to even reduce their taxes further through the circuit breaker
process. So, I'll be talking to the Administration to insure that, you know, some way,
somehow, the veterans can be provided that particular information.
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And to qualify for the circuit breaker, there is a process that you need to go through
by the end of the year, December 31 is the deadline. So, I, I'll follow up with the
Administration. Thank you.
MR. SKAGGERBERG: Thank you, Joe.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, further questions? Thank you very much, sir.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Paul Laub. Mr. Laub will be followed by Alex Franco.

MR. PAUL LAUB:
Aloha mai kakou. I'm Paul Laub and I'm President of the Maui County Veterans
Council. Though I'm here for, for the veterans actually, I think that really I'm here for
all the disabled, whether veterans or not, and all the kupuna who are on fixed
income, veterans or not, it's, it's not factor.
The factor is, is that costs are skyrocketing for everybody. I think Matson just
announced that they're going to have a 47.5 surcharge increase. All the food's going
up, if you've been to market, and I know you all have, all the food's going up. The
gas has been devastating. People just can't go places. They, they have no money
to spend anywhere else. And there's no relief in sight, regardless of what the political
parties say.
I think we're, we're approaching trying to get the money in, in, in, in the wrong way. I
think that there, there perhaps might be a better way. And I think that, and I know
we're going to be talking about this once the budget is done, I think that what we
need to do is really support small businesses, small business growth on this island.
The, it has been shown perpetually that the State overall is one of the lowest states
for business and we need to have these people be able to do small businesses out of
their homes, do whatever they can to keep, keep their homes and make ends meet.
I'm going to give you some, some data here. Chase Bank, I discussed it with Chase
Banks, my, our friends at Chase Bank. They have three and a half million homes in
foreclosure. The ones that they are processing now that you see for sale now were
picked up in 2009. They have five years of backlog on their foreclosures. This is
going to keep the prices down. This is going to keep people out of work.
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The approach that we need, should, as I say, get people back to work. That is our
main thing and the best way to do that is ... it right here.
I want to thank you very much for your kind attention and let's not put more taxes on
the people who can afford it least. Thank you very kindly.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Laub. Members, is there a need to have any part of the
testimony rephrased?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Paul for being here this morning.
MR. LAUB: Thank you, sir.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: On your testimony, in regards to this year's proposal, you
know as compared to the Mayor's proposal, we had reduced the rates quite
significantly in all categories that affect business. So, we, we, Councilmembers
understand how important it is that we support our small, especially our small
business people because they're the ones that, you know, hire people. So, thank
you for your testimony this morning. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further questions?
MR. LAUB: I, I can add a, a little point to this.
CHAIR MATEO: Real quickly, Mr. Laub, there was no question asked. Real quickly.
MR. LAUB: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Alex Franco. Mr. Franco will be followed by Amber Starr.
MR. ALEX FRANCO:
Good morning, Councilmembers. My name is Alex Franco. I'm here as an individual
who has been in agriculture for more than thirty-five years. I don't believe there's a
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person in this room that does not support agriculture and realize how important it is to
our State's economy, food security and to feed the growing demand for locally
produced agricultural products in Hawaii.
If we look back five to ten years, Hawaii agriculture has, has been an industry under
economic challenges for decades as we, we have had no, no choice but to compete
with commodity products, many of which that are, are shipped into our grocery stores
weekly. For the first time in recent history, a local food movement has created
demand that has helped small farmers and rancher, ranchers educate our customers
on the higher quality and value of locally produced foods.
Unfortunately, as we are able to increase our price, our cost is right behind us
gobbling up the needed profits to stay in business. Some feel we can pass this on to
our, our consumers who are presently paying 15 to 20 percent more for locally
produced foods. But as our cost increased, our, our force above that, that 20 percent
threshold, we begin, we begin to lose customers, customer based, the customer
based support critical, for the critical mass and infrastructure we have developed over
the last five years.
This is why we need your help in controlling these costs. Not with financial subsidies
but by developing sound agricultural policy that will help us transition our operations
into a viable business that can produce food in abundance for Hawaii's residents.
The increase in property tax rates and the minimum fees for individual TMK's does
just the opposite and will have a negative impact on small farmers and ranchers.
This issue needs to be carefully studied so it, it's outcome can become part of the
sound agricultural policy that encourages, not discourages farmers to farm. Thank
you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Franco.
Members. Ms. Baisa, followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Franco for being here. And of
course I do know that, you know, you're very involved in the cattle industry here on
Maui and have been, I guess most of your life. What I'm hearing from you is that you
are concerned and I guess members or people that you work with because you work
with a lot of the small ranchers and farmers here on Maui, that the increase in the
minimum tax from 150 to $300 a year would have a harmful effect on this industry
that is just getting on its feet. Is that correct?
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MR. FRANCO: Most definitely. I mean, we, we're faced with a tremendous amount of
challenges. I mean, for example we have other ranchers here today that will be
testifying but, you know, case in point, we have small ranchers that have multiple
TM K's that, you know pretty much their property rates will double not triple.
We have an, we even have Kaupo Ranch here today that was trying to budget
themselves to at least break even. And then all of a sudden, based on that budget
property tax just doubles on them in one year, not over time. So it, its, it, it, every
little bit helps to, to be able to, to keep us in business.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let me ask you one more clarification and that is, because this
is a doubling of the tax, do you think that a gradual increase may be, might be more
palatable rather than a doubling?
MR. FRANCO: Most definitely. I, I, I think if, if we could somehow take some time to really
think this thing through. Again, you know, developing the sound policy takes time
and we got to be careful that we don't make those mistakes that can impact
individuals to, to where they, they're forced out of business.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: When did you become aware of this potential increase?
MR. FRANCO: Oh, actually a, a couple weeks ago, I saw it in the paper but you know as
challenging as the, the, the agriculture is, it's my comrade, Mr. Larry Alexander that
called me up and say "eh, what we going do about this?" And you, and he's right,
he's right, and you know it's something that needs to be dealt with and we all need to
pull together, the Cattlemen's Association, and small farmers and ranchers that this is
an issue that we need your help on. And in a, in a way that we can try and, you
know, do something that everybody can, can benefit from this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, so you're saying maybe more time to study it before
implementation?
MR. FRANCO: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MR. FRANCO: The time needed to, to study it, please.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for being here.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Larry for being here.
You serve the best hamburger on Maui. Anyway, for your information, you know,
once these budget process is completed, this Chairman is, is going to bring up two
tough issues in regards to real property tax. One is to reduce the home exemption by
$100,000 so that we can move forward as a County in regards to the type of services
that we need to provide this County. The second thing is agricultural rates. We find
that we could improve in agricultural rates.
And, you know, doing taxes is not easy and I agree with you that we should all sit
down and figure out a way how we can tax our people the you know, the right way or,
or more evenly and yet not hurt the type of services that we provide to this County,
public safety, human services and the like.
For your information though, we have allocated a lot of money through the OED,
Economic Development Office, in regards to promotional of agriculture products. So,
in that way we're, we're helping the farmers to, to promote their products in a different
manner rather than you have to promote all the time.
So I thought I'd pass that information to you and, and in regards to the 300,000,
$300, I, an increase of $150 for each parcel, yeah, I, I had introduced that as a
means of trying to resolve some of the issues that we need to resolve in regards to
providing service for this County, especially public safety. Thank you.
MR. FRANCO: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Franco, you mentioned that there are many
small ranchers, and ranches that are having this issue. How many, do you know how
many ranches have the multiple TMK issue?
MR. FRANCO: Speaking to some of the ranchers as we've been collaborating, I would
envision there's probably about seventy, seventy ranching, individual ranchers that
will be impacted by this.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Seventy individual ranchers?
MR. FRANCO: Mhm.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Members, further questions? Thank you,
Mr. Franco.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Amber Starr. Ms. Starr will be followed by Robert Ferreira.

MS. AMBER STARR:
Morning, Councilmembers. Thank you, Chair Mateo for this opportunity to testify
today on the proposed resolution to adopt the Real Property Tax Rates for the
County of Maui, effective July 1, 2011. My name is Amber Starr. I have been
involved in agriculture for many years and I am Vice-President of the Maui
Cattlemen's Association.
The Maui Cattlemen's Association represents small and large cattle producers in
Maui County. Many of the ranchers in our organization have rent, have grazed cattle
on family land for generations. Many of them also lease land and have done so for
many, many years.
In that time, the ranchers of Maui County have seen countless changes. They've
seen rises and falls in beef prices. They've been directly impacted by increases in
fuel and transportation costs. They've battled invasive species and drought. But one
thing remains a constant, they preserve pastureland and they perpetuate agriculture,
benefiting our County on so many levels.
The cost of production continue to increase amid ups and downs in the cattle market
and the industry continues to adapt having to be creative at times to build markets
and keep cost down.
As we understand it, the proposed changes in taxation would increase the base fee
per TMK from $150 to $300 and increase the tax rate per $1,000 of assessed value
from $5.00 to $5.80. Ranching provides beautiful open space vistas, excuse me,
contributing to the islands appeal, benefiting visitor industries and residents. Proper
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grazing management adds to the reduction of soil erosion preventing soil from
entering the sea.
Ranch land has also long been a buffer for the watershed areas protecting them from
the spread of invasive species. It has also been very useful in reducing fuel loads
and greatly supports fire suppression efforts. These advantages and others go hand
in hand with mindful ranching; and our local communities, government and
environment all benefit.
Maui County ranchers, large and small, are constantly adjusting to strike a balance
that will allow them to remain in business. A doubling of the base fee coupled with a
16 percent increase from the current tax rate is going to be a hardship for many in the
agricultural industries. It is no doubt a difficult task to strike the balance between
meaning, maintaining government fiscal solvency while minimizing burdensome
increases and taxes.
The most challenging increase is the jump from a $150 base fee to a $300 base fee.
This is particularly difficult for producers that graze cattle on multiple TMK's, which
include several large ranchers and many small ranchers. I believe the same holds
true for many farmers as well.
We humbly ask that the Council consider a more gradual approach to this matter to
give landowners, lessees and the County of Maui the opportunity to recognize what
the fiscal future holds for private and public sectors alike and to strengthen
agricultural industries in our County.
CHAIR MATEO: One minute to conclude.
MS. STARR: Thank you for your dedicated service to our County and for your time today.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Starr. Members, questions?
I'm going to go, Don Couch, Mr. Victorino, and Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Starr for coming. I wanted to
ask you, you'd mentioned something about you, there's a base rate of 300 and an
increase to 5.80 on the ag rates. Are you aware that that base rate is a minimum as
opposed to, it's not including, cause I, I've heard from a couple of ranchers from your
organization saying that oh we have the $300 plus the tax. It's not quite. It's if you're
tax rate drops down below the $300, the $300 is the, is the minimum you pay. It's not
the $300 plus whatever. Are you guys, is your organization aware of that or?
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MS. STARR: Well, the, the clarification is certainly appreciated and I, I think that's a good
distinction to be made.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
MS. STARR: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And Amber for your particular area, how,
what kind of affect would it have directly on your ranch?
MS. STARR: Well I oversee Hana Ranch-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah.
MS. STARR: --and it would be tens of thousands of dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In additional costs? Okay. Cause of the multiple
TMK's?
MS. STARR: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Amber.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Amber for being here this morning. I,
I think Mr. Couch, you know, kind of explained what I was going to tell you; that if
your tax bill is below the minimum tax amount of $300, you know, your, you will pay
three, now $300 as the minimum tax. Again, previously it was 150. Minimum tax is
not a base the taxpayers will have to pay in addition to their tax bill. So is, you know
it's not a base, it's the minimum you going to be paying. So I thought I'd clarify that
with you.
You know if your bill already exceeds $300 then you know you'll continue to pay
more than $300 so it's not a base where you add your tax bill on, you know, to do
that. And I, I think some, my staff had explained it to some of the individuals that
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called in regards to this minimum tax and, and you know he was hoping to spread the
word in regards to this particular minimum tax and how it does affect the, the farmers.
In regards to some of the comments that you made regarding invasive species and
the like. Well, this budget process that we have gone through for the last two and a
half, three months now, we've added more monies to take care of invasive species in
this County.
Along with that, we allocated a lot of funding to protect our watershed so that, you
know, farmers and the like, you know, shouldn't be worried about, of course we still
going to have some you know some of the watershed protection to go on from now
and probably forever in trying to protect our watershed. So we've done additional
funding and we've provided additional funding to the watershed protection area as
well as taking care of invasive species. I thought I'd provide you that information to
give you some idea and some clarity in regards to this particular minimum tax and
what we're doing for the farmers all over Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussions?
MS. STARR: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Ms. Starr.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Robert Ferreira. Mr. Ferreira will be followed by Bryan Sarasin.

MR. ROBERT FERREIRA:
Good morning, Council Chair, Councilmembers. My name is Robert H. Ferreira. I
represent Kaupo Ranch as Manager. Your proposed per TMK increase and
minimum rate increase would be very unfavorable for Kaupo's ranching operations in
an already difficult economic time.
Kaupo Ranch stewards a total of 5,516 acres on some seventy different TMK's. With
this proposal, both large and small, especially, will be, their operations will be
affected by this proposed increase. This is just plainly a bad idea which will
compromise the ranching industry on Maui. For Kaupo, I got to go find another thirty
cows so that they can pay this 10,500 that I got to come up with meaning that's less
thirty, twenty-five to thirty that I get to sell on trying to just break even. Thank you for
your time. I make this short and sweet.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Ferreira. Members, is there a need to have any part of the
testimony rephrased?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Ferreira, Ferreira for coming. Do
you current, does Kaupo Ranch currently pay the minimum 150 or is their valuation
high enough that it, it goes over-MR. FERREIRA. No, the 150.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It does on all the TMK's, it is paying the minimum now? Is
that correct?
MR. FERREIRA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Ferreira for being here. So, if I'm correct
in saying it, then whatever you pay minimum right now, you, you exactly double the
whole price? That's what-MR. FERREIRA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you don't have any other combinations of lands, it's
all these specific TMK's?
MR. FERREIRA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How much of these TMK's are actually leased by Kaupo
Ranch? How many acres are, how many of these TMK's from the State, from
somebody else?
MR. FERREIRA: I need to turn to the ex-manager. Yeah, pretty much all of em.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: State or somebody else you leasing the land from?
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MR. FERREIRA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You guys don't own the land outright?
MR. FERREIRA: No, we own the land.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay you-MR. FERREIRA: But it is many different partials that is also.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no I understand that, but you own the land, you not
leasing. Like a lot of my small ranchers lease from the State, lease from Kaanapali
Ranch, Kaanapali Land, I mean, there's other entities. You guys don't?
MR. FERREIRA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You guys own that land and, but just various TMK's?
MR. FERREIRA: Right. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, thank you for that clarification. Thank
you, Mr. Ferreira.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Ferreira for being
here. It's really important that we hear from you folks. I've been getting a lot of
phone calls and emails about this and, you know, I'm really concerned because you
know we talk a good story about supporting agriculture and sustainability and have,
growing our own food on Maui. And I'm aware that the cattle industry is, you know,
it's, it's never really solid, in fact, I think for once it's just doing okay.
But what I'm hearing from you and from your colleagues is that this increase could
really have a very serious effect on things like Maui Cattle Company that are just
doing well because everybody's beginning to give the meat to them. Your marketing
is doing well and this would be a financial blow that could be really irreparable and I
think what I'm, the point I'm getting is, what I'm hearing is, we need this money, let's
pass the law and then we'll work on amending it.
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But the law will go into effect July 1, and it will be in effect and you will have to pay.
And so, that's your fear, is that you would rather we, we work on it and then maybe
look at something else rather than doing it and dealing with it. Is that what I'm
hearing?
MR. FERREIRA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I just want to be sure that I'm getting the right message.
MR. FERREIRA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MR. FERREIRA: You're welcome. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Can you come back, Mr. Ferreira.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ferreira.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Ferreira, one more.
Member Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for being here. I'm very familiar with Kaupo Ranch.
Yeah, I, I, I know the minimum tax may, you know is going to have an effect on most
Maui County people and you know one of the things I had said earlier is that we're
going to be taking up the agriculture property tax soon after this budget is completed.
And just to let you know, the valuation for Kaupo Ranch is a little over $40 million at
this time so just for your information, again, you know we're going to take up
agriculture property tax rates soon after this budget hearing is completed. Thank
you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla Members, further questions? Thank you very
much, Mr. Ferreira.
MR. FERREIRA: You're welcome.
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CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Bryan Sarasin. Mr. Sarasin will be followed by George Paresa.

MR. BRYAN SARASIN:
Good morning, Council Chair, Councilmembers. My name is Bryan Sarasin. I'm
testifying as an individual. Last time I testified about the minimum tax increase from
$150 to $300, I guess fell upon deaf ears. The Maui News Sunday direct quote from
Budget Chair Pontanilla was more than disappointing. It conveyed a complete lack of
understanding the reality of the challenges the farmers, ranchers, are facing today.
Last I checked, the State and Maui County are in favor of agriculture, farming, taro,
etc.
As leaders, we expect the, we expect you to have the leadership and courage to do
what is fair and right. It may not be your intent, but in fact you're screwing the little
guy. Why? Because of the unintended consequences, like Larry and his thirteen tax
bills. There are many more like him and the normal working man and woman do not
have the time to come here and testify during the daytime.
You the County Council do not have the foresight to enforce the gentlemen estates,
funny farms. You would rather go after the farmers, ranchers, homeowners, kuleana
farmers and the, and the like. You need to keep the $150 figure in place until you
can work out a time for a public hearing in the evening for the public to come and
give input.
You the County Council need to set up a task force committee or whatever and deal
with the property classification issues and rates. This issue has been sidestepped for
over ten years and it needs to be addressed ASAP. That's why I'm here today.
Homeowners exemptions are also being exploited and I was disappointed when I just
heard that after this you guys are looking at taking away 100,000 of the homeowners
exemption. Set up enforcement. Also all the properties that are taxed, I've heard of
so many cheap discrepancies it isn't funny.
You know, if you were, the solutions, take the existing tax rate as is and tax every
category with the same increase until you can research and make appropriate
changes. You want money, it's out there. It's out there for collection, again, if you
have the guts to do it and not pass the buck again.
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After the last meeting I testified in, three Council people talked to Larry and myself
and expressed sympathy for this travesty. My Sunday news interpretation is, County
Council reaches budget deal with a $300 minimum in there. I am here today to have
the Councilmembers reconsider this issue from 150 to 300 head on and fix it now.
Keep the $150 now. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. You know, you notice I not asking
questions right? I, I just trying to provide information.
In regards to those delinquent taxes, I, I think in the paper the other day it had said
that we collected over $6 million in delinquents, and this is the work of previous
Council. Two years ago, we hired more people to support the real property tax area
to go, to go after those delinquent tax, taxpayers. And we did just, you know, what
you just told us. So I thought I'd pass on that information in regards to, you know
going after delinquent taxes. We are, as a County going after those people that not
paying their taxes to pay up their taxes. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
MR. SARASIN: May I respond.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, further-MR. SARASIN: Can I respond to that first please?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Sarasin, response will be based only on whether or not a question was
asked.
MR. SARASIN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: There was no question.
MR. SARASIN: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms., Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Aloha, Mr. Sarasin. Nice to see you.
And you know, I, I hear the concerns loud and clear. You know, my question to you
is, how would you recommend to this body in distinguishing between the legitimate,
you know real everyday farmers like yourselves versus the supposed, you know,
gentlemen farmers or fake farms. Is there like maybe a minimum income generated,
something like that? Is there like a, a system you feel would be fair for us to, you
know, utilize in, in discerning to and who should be taxed accordingly?
MR. SARASIN: You know, that's a very, it's not a question that I can answer. I know you
guys have gone round and round with that. But my, my main thing is and I've talked
to several of the Council people, there's, there's 25 to $28 million out there in
gentlemen estates, people that are taking advantage of the homeowners exemption
more than one time.
And if you guys were to go into enforcement, set up a, a new . .. task force or
whatever the case may be and, and check on that because they, the money is out
there, it's just a question of enforcement.
And, you know, as far as Mr. Pontanilla and, and property taxes, that's really, that
was one area that I would, but I know that that's already ongoing. But what I'm
talking about is, I'm talking about everybody else is taking advantage of this system.
Cause if, if, if the County was to find that out and take, and, and do what's already on
the books, you'd have an additional 25 to $28 million tomorrow. Granted it's, it's
going to be a process. It's going to talk, take you probably a year, a year and a half,
maybe two years for that to happen but then it can go back proactive as well. So
that, that would be, that would be my, my answer.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Sarasin. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Members, further, further questions? Thank
you very much, Mr. Sarasin.
MR. SARASIN: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Calling George Paresa. Mr. Paresa will be followed by Vincent
Del Rosario.
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MR. GEORGE PARESA:
Morning, Council Chair and Councilmembers. My name is George Paresa. I am the
President of Waihee Community Association and I'm here to testify, the concerns of
the community, to let you know how we feel about what's going on. The community
is against the increase. There are people in Waihee who are, in fact the majority of
the people in Waihee, are on fixed incomes. There are a lot of farmers, a lot of family
farmers. With this increase, present, future farmers may be discouraged to farm in
this community.
In the past, Waihee has always been the bread basket of Maui. Our lo'i was some of
the oldest, I'm, our lo'i some of the oldest and greatest. Even today, the tradition
lives on as most of this community still grows its own fruits, vegetables and especially
lo'i. I don't know if you've been to the Waihee Valley lately, but there are a lot of
people who are trying to retain the old Hawaiian style of raising lo'i.
We talked earlier, I, people questioning about how many TMK's. From what I
understand the Waihee Valley back in the Mahele days, there were little portions of
land that was given to the families so you could imagine how many numbers of
TMK's are on the valley itself.
Kapuna which is part of the Waihee area has been a source of life and is still in the
source of water for the island; and therefore the sustaining element of farming. With
this proposal, the farmers of Waihee community itself will have a difficult time
financially and perhaps these changes will have affect in the future. Please consider
your decisions.
I have another testimony I'd like to zip in if I may. And this is from Richard and Jan
Buen. And, the letter states:
As small farmers, we are against any property tax increase to our farm.
With continuous increases and expenses, farm supplies such as
fertilizer, feed for animals, weed control, capital expenses insurance,
gas for farm trucks, mowers, diesel, water, building and maintenance
fees, irrigation systems; we have never made a profit or even broke
even. Year after year we report losses.
As our government leaders, please make the responsible decision and
help us, don't hurt us. Do not add another expense that will put an ax
to our head and bury us deeper into the hole. Rather, enforce the
property ordinance and increase the manpower in the property tax
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division to investigate the inequities in the tax assessments and
enforce collections on home exemptions.
Again, they're requesting, do not put the little guys out of business. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you very much, Mr. Paresa.
MR. PARESA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Vincent Del Rosario. Mr. Del Rosario will be followed by Larry
Alexander.
MR. VINCENT DEL ROSARIO:
Aloha, Chairman Mateo and fellow Councilmembers.
CHAIR MATEO: Good morning. Can you, can you move the mike, there we go. Thank
you
MR. DEL ROSARIO: My name is Vince Del Rosario and I am a disabled Vietnam combat
veteran. I stand before you today to give testimony in opposition of the proposed
increase in the minimum Maui County tax, property tax from 150 to 300 per year.
In 2010, I purchased my first home. Due to the lag in the tax system, my minimum
tax benefit is due to start, benefit my ohana in August of this year. This is a great
benefit as I no longer work and rely on my, I only rely on my veterans and social
security benefit. You the Members of Maui County Council has spoken of wanting to
ensure the most needy and of the seniors of our community and on taking care of it
in, in, in the current budget.
Increasing the minimum tax on disabled veterans by 100 percent is not consistent
with these statements. For 1,000 disabled veterans in Maui County, the County will
gain an additional 100, $150,000 in incremental income. But for each individual
veteran, some who live on very limited incomes, the extra 150 per year may mean
other essentials are sacrificed.
As many of you know, our veteran community is pulling together and become
knowledgeable and campaigning in support of those individuals who support our
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needs and those needs of the community as well. I wish to continue to work with you
in a positive direction.
In, in conclusion I ask to, for your support in not increasing the minimum property tax
in Maui County to 300 per year for disabled combat, for disabled veteran property
owners like me. Thank you for your time and attention this morning.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you, Mr. Del Rosario.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Larry Alexander. Mr. Alexander will be followed by Judy Fox.
MR. LARRY ALEXANDER:
Good morning, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Good morning.
MR. ALEXANDER. Councilmembers. My name is Larry Alexander. I'm here to testify on
raising the minimum property tax from $150 to $300 a year. Me, myself as a small
rancher, I have thirteen tax keys that I'm responsible to pay for. . . . go that
100 percent increase will just about really put me out of business. I will not be able to
afford the taxes on the property anymore. I have, by leasing the property, I have no
other alternatives of any other income; it's just pastureland.
It cost me thousands of dollars to put up the fences, maintain the fences, to also
eradicate all the trees, just to graze cattle. I've been doing this for thirty-five years. If
you do go from the minimum from $150 to $300, I will no longer be in business. I
can't afford it. And there is no other alternative for me. All that thousands of dollars
that I had put in, in fencing and maintaining the properties, I will lose it all. Thank you
very much. Any questions?
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased?
Mr. Hokama, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Alexander, you lease all those--
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MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --parcels yeah? You don't own any of them?
MR. ALEXANDER: I don't own not one of them. All thirteen is leased.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And, and are many of those abutting each other?
MR. ALEXANDER: Yes-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But they're different landowners?
MR. ALEXANDER: No, no. Like, for example, one of the parcels has four different tax keys
on it and it's combined as one lease. So, for that one lease, we looking at $1,200.
Just for that one 50 acre piece cause there's four separate tax keys there.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, I, I, I understand what you're sharing so I appreciate
your, your comments to us this morning. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Alexander, are you, you are currently paying
the minimum a hundred and fifty on each parcel?
MR. ALEXANDER: That's correct. When they changed it from, in 2008, from 60 to $150,
by the time I found out about it, it was already too late, was passed. I didn't get a
chance to come and testify about it cause that really hurt me from the beginning.
Now, this is going to completely destroy me.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay and I think it was Mr. Ferreira possibly that said that
they probably would have to, to sell thirty more cows.
MR. ALEXANDER: Well if you have the place to put thirty more cows you lucky. I, I can't
raise any more than I have on the property right now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you are saturated?
MR. ALEXANDER: I am, maximized. I even actually has too many on the property.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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MR. ALEXANDER: To, actually . . . so if I go to another drought situation, it's going to cost
more money for feed, fuel cost, everything goes up.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Members, further questions? Thank you very
much Mr. Alexander.
Mr. Clerk.
MR. ALEXANDER: Thank you.
COUNTY CLERK: Judy Alexan, excuse me, Judy Fox. Ms. Fox will be followed by Michelle
Del Rosario.

MS. JUDY FOX:
Good morning. I was here a year ago when you were considering all the different,
trying to combine the different . . . categories and, and various categories of, of
ownership on condo associations. And then I kind of dropped off the map, I guess
which I'm sorry about. But I didn't even know about this 150, $300 thing until I read it
in the Maui News. I don't think it was very well published by you guys. I think it was
kind of a secret thing and that kind of bothers me.
The other thing that bothers me is I have listened to the testimony this morning. I just
came without, I wasn't even going to testify. I was just trying to listen to what, and I
thought it would be about all the categories. Let me explain what I heard this
morning. I heard that there has been an increase since 2008 of 500 percent,
500 percent in the minimum tax. Is that correct? I would like to know. And secondly
and even to our disabled veterans, which I think is horrendous. I just cannot believe
that you guys would raise rates like that on disabled veterans. I can't believe that you
would raise it on our farmers.
We have a, a, an economy in this State that is dying and here we have. And I have
seen since my daughter moved over here in '93 and I started visiting and then I,
again I bought in 2001 and actually moved over here in 2009. And one of the
reasons I moved over here was that the minimum tax per property tax was, was I
thought quite low. And again, I can afford this probably even if I am living on a fixed
income and everything else. I can understand that there are people who cannot.
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And I do not understand why you are taxing the least able the highest percentage of
increase.
The, the, there was a letter in the Maui News a couple weeks ago from the poor time
share owners who were going to have a 9.6.14 increase in their property tax, how
terrible. And then I looked at every other category except my category is increased
by 10 percent from what I can see. And yet the minimum category is increased
100 percent. Is that fair? I don't think so. I think you guys got to get it right some
time.
And one of the things that I think you have to do is to, again like they said, have
some hearings on this. Why can't you make categories out of the minimum rate? I
would, I would be willing to pay the 300 if I could save a veteran from having to pay
150, which I think they should be paying 60. I'm sorry. I just, it made me mad this
morning. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony rephrased?
Thank you, Ms. Fox.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Michelle Del Rosario. Ms. Del Rosario will be followed by Bill Staton.

MS. MICHELLE DEL ROSARIO:
Good morning.
CHAIR MATEO: Good morning.
MS. DEL ROSARIO: My name is Michelle Del Rosario and I'm Principal Broker for Maui
and Company Real Estate here in the County of Maui. I come before you this
morning to share my testimony in opposition of the increase in the minimum property
tax for a variety of categories.
For our veterans, our disabled veterans in particular, for our farmers and ranchers
who I know there have been a number of questions about do you own your land, do
you not own your land, how much is it assessed. In working in land in the Upcountry
area I recently dealt with a transaction on 10 acres in Ulupalakua and the minimum
tax was assessed on that parcel and the assessment for the ag property was $1,000.
There are a lot of Upcountry agricultural parcels that are only assessed a nominal
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amount of $1,000. And many of our, our small farmers and small business people
are paying the minimum tax.
I do agree with the other testifiers that I think it is unacceptable in our day and age to
be raising the minimum tax on those who are the most vulnerable in our community;
seniors, disabled. But particularly the people who are paying the minimum tax own
homes valued at less than 400,000. These are not millionaires. There is no, these
are not even middle class. These are our low income and our very low income
homeowners.
I work as a part of my practice with very low income purchasers. One program I work
with is with the County of Maui, the HUD Homeownership Program, which moves the
rental voucher clients to a home purchase program. And this minimum tax increase
will impact those purchasers.
The County currently has about 1,500 people on vouchers who are eligible for this
program and the change in the tax is going to increase the tax on the dollars that the
County itself is paying. The County switches from paying a rental voucher to a
mortgage voucher and pays the property taxes for these homeowners. So I think that
is a segment you should consider as well.
Personally, as a member of our community, I know that we have a lot of needs and I
would like to see people before projects. As I listened to the construction of our
budget for the upcoming year, I heard lots of speaking about road improvements,
parks. I haven't had to cut back in my own personal family but many of my clients
and friends and neighbors have and I feel like if we are having to cut back, maybe
this isn't the time to move forward with some of these projects. I do realize that some
of these projects are meant to be job creation and we do need that in our community.
But perhaps we could use, decision-making and create a balance in how we move
forward. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you very much.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Bill Staton. Mr. Staton will be followed by Michael Covich.
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MR. BILL STATON:
Mr. Chairman, Members of the County Council. Aloha Kakahiaka. My name is Bill
Staton. I am 100 percent service connected Vietnam veteran from my combat PTSD,
posttraumatic stress disorder; a life member of the Vietnam Vets of Maui County, I
am their Chaplain; a life member of the Disabled American Veterans; and a life
member of the Veterans of Foreign Wars. I'm speaking against the tax increase
proposal.
It's been said that there is no greater gift than for a person to lay their life down for
their friend. After twenty years of serving as the State's Veterans advocate for the,
the veterans here in Maui County, I can tell you that any person returning from
combat with a total disability has an additional impact on their family as they continue
to pay the price for our freedom.
After six years of being permanently and totally disabled myself, I'm now living what
that looks like. Our income is generally greatly limited because it's from Federal
sources, from the VA and social security. I don't think there's anybody in here that
isn't aware of the fact that those are areas that are looked at right now by our
government to get cuts. Can you imagine the harm if that, those cuts go through and
you cut one of the small benefits that this County gives for our disabled vets?
It's important that we clarify the disabled vets as not the broad category from
zero percent to 100. The only people to get that disability benefit are those who are
a 100 percent disabled. It's a drastically small number. I want you to know it's really
hard for me to be here right now. Many of you know me. Many of you have seen me
speak in public. Many of you don't know how hard it has been for me to sit here and
just sit and listen; that's my disability. I may go to a gym, I may do things to work out,
I may do all sorts of things that make it look like I'm not disabled. If my wife and
family were here, they could tell you otherwise.
You don't know the disabilities that people are coming home with today. It's from
learning the disabilities that are coming home with our veterans from Iraq and
Afghanistan after they're being treated for them while they're in that combat zone and
then sent back to combat, thinking they were cured. Having counseled a
psychologist and a psychiatrist who were returning from those zones, and getting
them their 100 percent disability because of how hard it was for them to live with their
orders. You don't know the damage that's being done right now in homes. Please, I
ask you, don't carry it on.
I'm going to presume these beeps are telling me that I got a minute left?
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CHAIR MATEO: One minute.
MR. STATON: Thank you, sir. I wrote down something but it's kind of hard for me to follow
everything I scribble. I want you to understand that, and I, and I heard Gladys use a
phrase and I'm going to use it not in any way disparagingly, but what our Country
talks about. We talk a good story about supporting our troops. It's been said a long
time ago that a Country without heroes is poor and a Country that doesn't honor its
heroes is to be shamed. It is so worse for those vets that are coming home today.
I want you to look. We've got people that are here from, from agriculture and I, and I
thank them for coming because their concerns are strongly valid. But I also want you
to look at how many disabled people are here; 100 percent disabled people can't
speak for themselves. Thank you for this opportunity.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you, Mr. Staton.
MR. STATON: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Calling Michael Covich. Mr. Chairman, Michael Covich is the last
individual to submit a request to offer testimony.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
MR. MICHAEL COVICH:

Well I guess it is good afternoon, County Council, County Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Good afternoon.
MR. COVICH: First thing I'd like to do is thank you for all the hard work you did this year on
the budget. There was some painful choices made. At any rate, I'd been a, I'm
speaking today as the President of the Vietnam Veterans of Maui County. I'm trying
to keep my personal viewpoints out of this because I'm not sure this is the place to air
them on some of these issues.
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However, the Vietnam Veterans of Maui County would like to see the minimum tax
left at $150. I have interest in going back to 60. We have a variety of opinions on it,
but 100 percent service state veterans are getting hit at a variety of ways.
Even, we're even getting issues from the VA. This is just a small thing off it but I
don't know how many people have heard about shingles vaccines and how the older
you get um and blah, blah, blah. Well right now, for a while 100 percent service
connected veteran wanted one of these shots, they flew us over to Oahu, we got the
shot for free. Now they're saying, well we'll give you the shot for free but you have to
pay your own airfare. That's just another little shot at the deal. Overall, I'm not sure
that all the people that are eligible for this would even take it.
But another thing they might want to look at, and this is, if somebody's renting to a
100 percent service connected veteran, they're allowed to a tax exemption. For me
that tax exemption could go to the renter and not the landowner or the apartment
owner. It's very difficult and it's going to be continually difficult on returning veterans
because if people think that the rate of posttraumatic stress disorder was high in
Vietnam veterans, you better take a look at what's going to be happening here and
around the nation.
I do have one comment, that's a respect issue that veterans see here that's not with
the tax issues but we've tried to raise it before. And I'm going to raise it here
because Mr. Staton had tried to raise it earlier and we tried to raise it a few years ago
but that American flag belongs being placed ahead and in front of the other two flags.
That's my statements. I thank you for your attention.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you very much.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, Mr. Covich's testimony is the last, was the last person to
request the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. The Chair will allow opportunity for anyone in the gallery that
had not already provided testimony to the Council if you wish to do so, now is the
time to please advance to the podium.
Members, no one advance. With no objections, we will close public testimony for the
day. Any objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
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CHAIR MATEO: We are also in receipt of written testimony. Members, again, without
objections we will receive into the record the testimony that had been provided to
each of us. Any objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, WRITTEN TESTIMONY RECEIVED
FROM THE FOLLOWING WERE MADE A PART OF THE RECORD OF
THIS MEETING:
1.
2.

Mr. Mitch Skaggerberg; and
Mr. Jeffrey Parker.

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, so ordered. Members, we've been listening to testimony for a
little over an hour, the Chair would like to take a very short, a recess at this point.
Ten minutes we should be, we'll reconvene in ten minutes. We're in recess.
(THE PUBLIC HEARING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 12:10 P.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 12:27 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui, notice of public hearing regarding the real
property tax rates will reconvene. Members, thank you for that short break that we
had.
Mr. Clerk, please proceed.
The following proposed resolution was presented at this time.

RESOLUTION
RESOLUTION
NO. 11-52
ADOPTING THE REAL PROPERTY TAX RATES
FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI,
EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members the, all of you are in receipt of a copy of the
resolution. The Chair will entertain a motion to adopt at this time.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE THAT WE ADOPT THE RESOLUTION, "ADOPTING
THE REAL PROPERTY TAX RATES FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011". THANK YOU.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla and second by Mr. Hokama
to adopt the proposed resolution entitled "ADOPTING THE REAL PROPERTY TAX
RATES FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011".
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I, I know we've had a lot of discussion in the minimum tax but this resolution does not
involve the minimum tax at this time. It does provide information in regards to both
the land and building tax rate for the County of Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion on the property
rates as indicated on the reso?
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much Chair and I will be supporting the
resolution; however, I want to note reservations. And the reason I have any is
because we have not settled this matter of the minimum tax which I think still requires
discussion and of course we, we can do that tomorrow so I will support it but with
reservations. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Members, further discussion? Seeing none, all
those in favor of the motion to adopt the proposed resolution entitled "ADOPTING
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THE REAL PROPERTY TAX RATES FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI, EFFECTIVE
JULY 1, 2011", signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no".
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with nine "ayes".
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman there is nothing, nothing further to, to come before the
Council.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, we have concluded our business for the day. The
Chair thanks all of you very much for being here this morning and your participation
with this committee meeting, with this Council meeting, excuse me, with this public
hearing. Thank you for the clarification.
Members, there is no business before us, the, this public hearing regarding the Real
Property Taxes for the County of Maui, effective July 1, 2011 is now adjourned.

ADJOURNMENT
The public hearing of MAY 5, 2011, was adjourned by the Chair on MAY 23, 2011, at
12:30 p.m.

JEF Y 7 K WADA, COUNTY CLERK
COUNTY OF MAUI, STATE OF HAWAII
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